
 
 

Park County Commission Meeting Minutes 
Week of September 19 – 23, 2011 

Park County, Montana 
 

 
 
September 19, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:32:58 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Raea 
Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Hillman, road; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No 
public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
  

• Memo email re. oil and gas county royalty payments 
• Memo document re. Teamsters Union proposal 
• Memo email re. Nelson Spring Creek Road status 
• Memo email re. IT scanner purchase contributors 
• Memo email re. road equipment price 
• Memo email re. HB 319 special fuel bid 
• Memo document re. $780.80 forgiveness of citizen tax penalty and interest 
• Memo document re. Department Head agenda  

 
The Commission telephoned a MACo insurance representative about a damaged road 
grader who said it looks like the grader is repairable, but he must receive board approval 
before work will be bid upon. 
 
@8:53:29 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 19, 2011 
Personnel Meeting 
 
@9:32 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners Chambers.  
Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Jill 
Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to address a personnel issue. 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 1 of 16 



Minutes Clerk John Mueller requested the meeting close to the public, as his privacy 
associated with subject content exceeds the public’s right to know.   
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to close the meeting to the public.  Commissioner Malone 
seconded the motion.  The meeting was closed and the audio recording was turned off. 
 
@10:08 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 19, 2011 
Signing of the Park County Victim Witness Assistance Program Award Contract 
 
@10:09:36 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present was Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a Park County Victim Witness Assistance Program 
award contract. 
 
Commissioner Taylor said the award is an annual grant routinely signed each year to 
support the victim witness program.  Commissioner Durgan said the award contract runs 
from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012, and County Attorney Brett Linneweber is the project 
director. 
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to sign the contract for the coming year.  Commissioner 
Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
@10:12:01 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 19, 2011 
Review of Minutes for Week of September 12, 2011 
 
@1:01:23 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present was 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review commission meeting minutes for the Week of 
September 12, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Durgan requested a revision to Page 5 of 12; third full paragraph, the first 
sentence should read, “Westenskow said he took shots on Trail Creek Road with a 
citizen, Montana FWP and a representative from the conservation district to discuss a 
culvert issue where Morrison Creek crosses Trail Creek Road.”   
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 2 of 16 



Commissioner Malone requested a revision to Page 4 of 12; last paragraph, the first 
sentence should read, “GIS/IT Manager Erica Hoffman said she would like to pay a 
temporary GIS employee to be hired for a temporary election redistricting project more 
than $12.00 per hour, which is the wage at which a temporary GIS position previously 
topped out.”  On Page 5 of 12; second full paragraph, the first sentence should read, 
“Mark Westenskow of CTA Engineering said CTA went to White Lane to review an area 
where water ponds near a citizen’s garage.” 
 
Commissioner Taylor requested a revision to Page 9 of 12, noting the correct spelling of 
Jim Brown. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to accept the minutes as corrected.  Commissioner Durgan 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
   
@1:09:01 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects  
 
@8:33:30 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Raea 
Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Hillman, road; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No 
public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo document re. commissioner travel expense form 
• Memo document re. county finances balance sheet 
• Memo email re. Sept 27 transportation committee meeting 
• Memo email re. community development department separation of functions 
• Memo documents re. senior planner timesheets 
• Memo email re. Mountain States Transmission Intertie 
• Memo document re. MACo Healthcare Trust annual meeting announcement 
• Memo email re. Hardrock Counties meeting agenda 
• Memo email re. MACo loss control specialist resignation 
• Memo email re. Montana Cowboy Hall of Fame letter of support  

 
@8:51:50 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 3 of 16 



September 20, 2011 
Road/Engineering Services Updates  
 
@9:00:45 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Ed Hillman, road; Kevin Bales, Crazy Mountain Ranch; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  
No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss county road issues and engineering services. 
 
Road Supervisor Ed Hillman said the patching crew will patch Old Clyde Park and Duck 
Creek Roads today and the crew will haul gravel on Pulis Lane.  He said the crew will 
also work on a bridge on Jardine Road. 
 
Kevin Bales of Crazy Mountain Ranch said it will be two to three weeks before he can 
get a water truck to finish work on Hammond Creek Road.  Hillman said he may be able 
to provide a truck next week.  Bales said a CTA Engineering estimate for engineering 
oversight of Rock Creek Road maintenance is stout at $188 per hour.  He said it looks 
like a lot of project costs were rolled into the estimate and asked if project costs could be 
separated from administration costs. 
 
Commissioner Malone said a stop sign at Love’s Lane is dull and illegible, as is the “Stop 
Ahead” sign on Mill Creek Road going west.  He said a tree in a yard on Canyon View is 
blocking site to Billman Lane and asked Hillman to talk to the landowner about trimming 
the tree.  
 
@9:26:27 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
Department Head Meeting 
 
@9:31 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Community Room of the 
City/County Complex.  Present were Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor; Mary 
Anne Keyes, Extension; Barbara Woodbury, environmental health; Lani Hartung, 
finance; Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Hillman, road; Jill Ouellette, HR; Brett 
Linneweber, county attorney; Clay Williams, weed; Kelly Johnson, maintenance; Denise 
Nelson, clerk and recorder; and John Mueller, minutes clerk. 
 
Commissioner Taylor opened the floor to public comment.  None made. 
 
Ruling on Cell Phones: Finance Director Lani Hartung said the IRS decided against plans 
to tax personal use of company cell phones.  She and Park County policy remains that 
personal use is to be limited, but some employees are abusing that policy. 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 4 of 16 



Department Head Timesheets: The Commission said Department Heads are to submit 
timesheets to the Commission office for review. 
 
Motor Pool/Personal Vehicle Use Mileage Reimbursement: Hartung said employees must 
get Commission preapproval to drive personal vehicle to county business functions and 
qualify for the higher mileage reimbursement rate.  She said otherwise the reimbursement 
rate will be $0.27 per mile.   
 
Employee Accident Reporting Protocol: Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette 
provided a fact sheet reiterating the appropriate actions to take in reporting accidents 
while in Park County employ. 
 
Roundtable Discussion of Activities: Department heads and elected officials reported on 
recent and ongoing activities and projects. 
 
County Attorney Linneweber said he will provide a refresher course on county policy for 
social media, computer use, complaint process, discipline process and anything that could 
subject the county to a claim at the next department head meeting.  He said attendance at 
that meeting needs to be high. 
 
Other Business/Comment: Kelly Johnson, maintenance, asked how is to address citizens 
asking him questions about the county.  Linneweber said any litigation question should 
not be commented upon by any employee, and other questions generally are directed to 
the Commission or an employee’s appropriate elected official.  Johnson was told he 
would direct any questions to the commissioners. 
 
The next department head meeting will be scheduled at a later date. 
 
@10:02:21 a.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
Human Resources Updates 
 
@10:32:29 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss activities in the Human Resources Department. 
  
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette provided a change of status form for a Cooke 
City green box attendant and a travel request for an arbitration relations conference she 
will attend.  Ouellette said an employee suggestion was received suggesting placement of 
a FedEx pickup box outside the courthouse.  The Commission asked Ouellette to have 
Auditor Martha Miller research logistics of obtaining a pickup box.  
 
Ouellette said she is working on an employee computer use issue within a county 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 5 of 16 



department, and the county attorney will finish the effort when she is out of the office for 
training. 
 
@10:42:39 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
Discussion of FY 2012 Pay Scale Changes 
 
@11:00:23 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss Fiscal Year 2012 pay scale changes. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette presented the Commission with three wage 
adjustment scenarios: 1) a pay scale increase determined by adding five percent to 2005 
wages; 2) a pay scale increase determined by adding one percent cumulative each year to 
2005 wages; and 3) a pay scale increase determined by adding one percent cumulative 
through Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
Ouellette provided job requirement logistics of various county positions that justify 
proposed pay grades, as well as current county position wages that exceed pay grades.  
Ouellette said she recommends the Commission update the pay scale every two years.   
 
The Commission said it prefers the option of extending a one percent increase through 
Fiscal Year 2013.  Ouellette said she will present the Commission with a final draft of 
that proposal and submit it to the county attorney’s office for review. 
 
@11:17:42 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
Signing of Living with Wildlife Mini-Grant Agreement with Montana Fish, Wildlife and 
Parks  
 
@11:31:58 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Mike Inman, community development; Chuck Donovan and Frank Rigler, citizens; and 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign an agreement with Montana Fish Wildlife and Parks 
(FWP). 
 
Senior Planner Mike Inman said the county was awarded a $6,000 FWP grant in mid 
June, but FWP’s signature process has taken until the present to allow for Commission 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 6 of 16 



signature.  Inman said the county is to give a good faith effort to have grant efforts 
underway by mid November, which he said will not be a problem.  He said he will work 
with the county GIS Department to implement FWP data layers as part of living with 
wildlife recommendations that can be distributed through the county.  He said data 
gathered will provide better information for subdivision applications to consider on the 
front end, and that data may be beneficial in updating the county growth policy and 
subdivision regulations after the appropriate public comment and board processes are 
followed.  
 
Commissioner Durgan said last winter was a classic example of no cooperation from 
FWP and the National Park Service with the people of Gardiner and a bison issue.  He 
said anything that can help to mitigate that issue through the grant would be beneficial.  
Citizen Frank Rigler said the FWP would not allow him to run bison off two neighbors’ 
properties to protect those properties.  Citizen Chuck Donovan said the FWP idea of 
wildlife friendly fencing promotes wildfire and he does not like wildlife friendly fencing.  
  
Inman said the grant project will provide information to consider, and nothing will be 
regulatory.  Inman likened the predicted data to the Wildland Urban Interface issue, 
where the county cannot keep people from building in high wildfire potential areas, but it 
can provide information on how to mitigate against fire dangers.  Inman also likened the 
data to the fact the county cannot tell a resident what type of fence to erect on his 
property, but can recommend different fencing types to avoid the resident’s driveway 
from drifting in with snow.  He said the grant data will allow the county to be 
accountable for what it needs to do regarding assessing subdivided properties for wildlife 
issues per the county’s required subdivision regulations.  He said he thinks FWP did a 
good job of assessing wildlife habitat across Montana, but thinks FWP overstepped its 
bounds procedurally and legally based on comments received from entities outside of 
Park County regarding regulations FWP is considering proposing for adoption into 
county subdivision regulations.  Inman said he reviewed the proposed regulations for 
FWP at FWP’s request.  He said the broad brush approach to wildlife habitat types and 
issues worked for that purpose, but none of the recommendations are site specific for 
individual proposed properties regarding subdivision.  
 
Inman said he is not against recommendations from FWP or fire professionals, but he is 
against recommendations when they do not come in the beginning of a subdivision 
review process, which is the point in time recommendations can be addressed.  He said 
such is why he applied for the grant in order to try to develop information to consider at 
the outset of a subdivision application.  He said as part of the project he proposes an 
educational effort through FWP to physically take out citizens, planning board and staff 
to show what is going on on-the-ground. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign the agreement.  Commissioner Durgan seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
@11:59:37 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 7 of 16 



 
 
September 20, 2011 
Discussion/Decision of Detention Center Emergency Evacuation Plan 
 
@1:06:19 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present were Jay 
O’Neill, PCSO; Kim Knutson, fair; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public 
comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a detention center emergency evacuation plan. 
 
Captain Jay O’Neill, sheriff’s office, said the detention center needs to determine a new 
emergency evacuation plan, as the old plan was to place inmates in the old East Side 
School building gymnasium, but that building is no longer available.  O’Neill said an area 
is needed with heat and doors to secure inmates with a minimum amount of security for a 
short term of perhaps two hours before more permanent arrangements can be made.  
 
There was discussion about using the fairgrounds rabbit and poultry barn, main exhibit 
building or the main exhibit building dining area.  Fair Manager Kim Knutson said the 
rabbit and poultry barn does not have heat at all times and the septic system is not 
functional.  She said she would prefer O'Neill use the dining room in an emergency 
situation.  O’Neill said he is agreeable to using that venue and will put it in the PCSO 
policy for Commission signature.  
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to accept the plan to use the fairgrounds facilities, with a 
preference of the dining room, as the designated area for a detention center emergency 
evacuation plan.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@1:14:21 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 20, 2011 
 
2:00 P.M. – Beartooth Highway Steering Committee – The Pollard, Red Lodge – 
Commissioner Malone attended 
 
6:30 P.M. – Fair Board – Fairgrounds Office 
  
September 21, 2011 
 
8:00 A.M. – Montana Cowboy Hall of Fame Work Meeting – Community Room – 
Commissioner Durgan attended 
 
 
 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 8 of 16 



 
 
September 21, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects  
 
@8:44:18 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present was Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo document re. Heart K Land and Cattle Company v. Park County findings 
of fact 

• Memo document re. $232 advertisement invoice for Gardiner Sidewalk bids 
• Memo document re. May 5 Area IV on Aging minutes and Oct 6 agenda 
• Memo document re. Addendum 1 from Great West Engineering for Gardiner 

Sidewalk Project bids 
• Memo email re. file and web server rebooting 
• Memo document re. Hamilton Road status letter  

 
Commissioner Taylor said a citizen reported on issues with billing at the Gardiner green 
box site.  He said the Commission will address that issue on September 22.  
 
@8:47:54 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
September 21, 2011 
 
9:00 A.M. – Claims Review – Commission Chambers 
 
September 21, 2011 
Signing of Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration Financial 
Assistance Award Agreement 
 
@10:14:40 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present was Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a Department of Commerce Economic Development 
Administration financial assistance award agreement. 
 
Commissioner Malone said the county’s current economic development effort has been 
going on for over a year and the grant will fund a Comprehensive Economic 
Development Strategy, which will be important to Park County.  

Week of 9/19/11 Page 9 of 16 



 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign the award.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@10:16:52 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 21, 2011 
Signing of Federal Aviation Administration Pay Request for City/County Airport Project 
 
@1:32:23 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Jerri Miller and Kerry LaDuke, airport board; Lani Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk 
John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a Federal Aviation Administration pay request for a 
City/County Airport renovation project. 
 
Jerri Miller, airport board, said she is submitting the first pay order for the airport runway 
renovation project. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign pay request number-one for the City/County 
Airport Project.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
In other discussion, Malone said FAA regulations have issue with placement of a 
proposed Gardiner compactor green box site within an airport flyway.   
 
@1:51:03 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 22, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@9:47 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners Chambers.  
Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Raea Morris, 
administrative assistant; Tracy Mosley, MSU Extension; Ed Hillman, road; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. Chamber of Commerce network live 
• Memo email re. courthouse kitchen floor installation 
• Memo document re. Accounting Department county budget figures 
• Memo from MACo re. bison placement program 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 10 of 16 



• Memo email re. Accounting Department Bell and Associations technical memo 
review 

• Memo document re. City/County Airport Board meeting minutes 
• Memo email re. community development director meeting agenda item requests 

 
Commissioner Taylor directed the administrative assistant to schedule the requested 
meeting from the community development director to discuss Parks and Recreation 
Board bylaws and economic development district issues. 
 
The commissioners said each will generate a list of job duties to be undertaken by three 
employees in the Community Development Department and then compare collective lists 
and discuss the issue further. 
 
Tracy Mosley, MSU Extension, provided the Commission with a draft letter of support 
for signature for a Cowboy Hall of Fame. 
 
@9:29:15 a.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
September 22, 2011 
Appointing of Applicant for Angel Line Board Position  
 
@9:36:19 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present was 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to appoint a new Angel Line Board member. 
 
Commissioner Taylor said the Commission received a letter from Angle Line Board chair 
Lee Parriott that states the board unanimously invited Lily Gold to join the Angel Line 
Board.  
 
Commissioner Malone moved to appoint Lily Gold to serve as an Angel Line Board 
member.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@9:37:27 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 22, 2011 
Discussion of Refuse Fees for Boulder Business Park 
 
@10:32:34 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Matthew Ridgeway, citizen; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss refuse fees in the Boulder Business Park. 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 11 of 16 



Matt Ridgeway, business owner in the Boulder Business Park, provided the Commission 
with documentation about his county refuse assessments on his business and 
inconsistencies in assessments each business in the business park is receiving.  Ridgeway 
said refuse assessments vary in the business park from $555 to $3,330, annually, and he 
is not trying to increase other businesses’ taxes, but he is just trying to get a fair shake 
with his refuse assessments.  
 
Commissioner Taylor said the Commission may be able to reassess Ridgeway’s 
properties and associated refuse assessments.  He said the Commission will run all 
information past its legal counsel and will get back with him to see if his refuse 
assessments may be adjustable. 
 
@10:49:36 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 22, 2011 
Discussion of Budget to Actual Revenues and Expenditures and Treasurer’s Cash for 
August 2011 
 
@1:01:59 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Lani 
Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss budget to actual revenues and expenditures and a 
Treasurer’s cash report for August 2011. 
 
Finance Director Lani Hartung provided the Commission with county budget actual 
revenues to expenditures and a Treasurer’s cash report through August 2011.  Hartung 
said the Road Department budget is over budget in its part-time employee budget line, 
and a short-term, millings project employee has exceeded the hours he was to work.   
 
Addressing the Treasurer’s cash report, Hartung said the treasure continues to have 
problems balancing the Treasurer’s cash to the Accounting Department.  She said the 
auditor recommended the Treasurer take over that effort, but she thinks the Accounting 
Department should do the work as it did in the past.   
 
@1:34:59 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 22, 2011 
Opening of Gardiner Sidewalk Project Bids 
 
@2:31:21 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Philip Fletcher, community development; Lani Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk John 
Mueller.  No public comment made. 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 12 of 16 



 
The meeting was scheduled to open Gardiner Sidewalk Project bids. 
 
Commissioner Taylor read into the record two sealed bids from EHC LLC, which claims 
to be a disadvantaged business, and Knife River as follows: 
 

• EHC LLC: total bid of $182,425 
• Knife River: total bid of $149,965  

 
Commissioner Malone moved to have Great West and the county legal department 
review the bids for compliance.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed.  
 
@2:38:48 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
September 23, 2011 
 
No Commission Meetings Scheduled 
 
September 23, 2011 
Special Solid Waste Board Meeting 
 
@9:04:12 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Taylor were present.  Also present were Solid 
Waste Board members Bob Currie, Allen Carter and Dennis Dodge; Barbara Woodbury, 
environmental health; Richard Wright, refuse; Ed Meece, Clint Tinsley and Dan Bennett, 
city of Livingston; Jim Hunt, citizen; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled as a special Solid Waste Board (SWB) meeting. 
 
Solid Waste Board (SWB) member Bob Currie said the meeting was scheduled to further 
discuss a master plan for the county regarding improving efficiency of refuse 
management services. 
 
Barbara Woodbury, director of environmental health, provided a map created by the 
county GIS Department that included all county green box sites and resident addresses 
that may likely use the sites based on proximity.  She said about 7,000 city of Livingston 
addresses were not included on the map. 
 
City Manager Ed Meece said the city several times has provided the county with a 
proposal to collect county refuse within a mile radius of the city limits.  Clint Tinsley, 
city of Livingston, said the city charges $53/ton at its refuse station and there is very little 
refuse the city does not take, except for refrigerators with Freon.  Meece said the city’s 
hauling contract does not require much removal of certain types of refuse and he does not 
think it is an issue for the city with getting unacceptable refuse items.  He said the city 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 13 of 16 



will meet staffing and hour change needs to accommodate county refuse coming into the 
city waste stream, but it cannot do that on hypotheticals of what may happen.  He said a 
definite agreement with closely estimated volume would be necessary. 
   
Citizen Jim Hunt said he is mystified the current discussion is taking place, because the 
county has not received the Bell and Associates solid waste study report.  SWB member 
Dennis Dodge said the discussion is about options for refuse management that will have 
to be done regardless of what the report says, which is getting the refuse to whatever 
facility, whether that be a transfer station or incinerator.  
 
Refuse Manager Richard Wright said the county cannot keep its costs low with 
continuing to drive refuse trucks to Cooke City or Gardiner if it gives away the refuse of 
residents within a one mile radius of the city, as that the biggest concentration of county 
residents.   
 
Meece said the city will be ready to take all county refuse as a test trial for the month of 
November and the city would be amenable to using county refuse staff during that time if 
need be.  He said all parties involved would then know whether the city can logistically 
accept and handle the county’s refuse.  Commissioner Taylor asked for Meece to put the 
proposal in writing.  Meece said he would provide a proposal by that afternoon.  
 
Currie asked about penalties that could be waged by the Great Falls landfill if the city 
receives unacceptable forms of refuse from the county.  Tinsley said the city has received 
few refrigerators and tires and pulls out all such items from the waste stream.  He said 
Great Falls charges the city three or four dollars per tire and tacks that on to the bill.  
Wright said the county receives at least 300 tires a week in its refuse stream.  Meece said 
300 tires a week equates to $5,000 per month, but in combining city and county refuse 
volumes he thinks that cost can be overcome.  He said the only way to know is to allow 
the city to attempt its trial effort. 
 
Wright said the county would end up paying the city fee of $5 per mattress, recliner, 
mattress, bed and dresser and $10 per sofa if it sends its refuse to the city, as those items 
are routinely deposited at the county green box sites.  He said the county must put hours 
on and lock green box site gates to control that issue.   Taylor said Park County is tired of 
paying for everyone else’s refuse, and it cannot control that issue until it puts hours on 
green box sties.  He said the county’s insurance company will stop insuring the county if 
the sites are not manned and given hours of operation.  Meece said the county 
government has been talking about the issue of closing and manning sites with dumping 
hours since he came in March of 2006, and it was discussed before them.  Hunt said 
locking the sites is not the final answer, as in the past people just dumped refrigerators in 
front of the gates or threw refuse over the locked fences. 
 
Taylor said the master plan will address such issues.  He said the county must first look at 
populations within the county green box site areas and reduce the number of green box 
sites accordingly to effectively monitor them.  He said hours must then remain constant 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 14 of 16 



to avoid confusion and permit law enforcement to make headway in addressing illegal 
dumpers. 
 
Currie asked how the city would handle household versus non household refuse.  Meece 
said it already has a procedure for that.  Tinsley said the city does not distinguish between 
the two refuse types, as every individual is weighed and charged accordingly.  SWB 
member Allen Carter asked if a county refuse employee could monitor Trail Creek or 
Chico for a week to get an idea of what is going in those sites during the one-month trial 
with the city.  Wright said he sorts refuse because he cannot charge county residents $48 
per ton in good faith for refuse types that he can send to the county landfill.   
 
Meece said the city will not do anything differently regarding its handling of solid waste 
during the test period, and the city can generate real data from that effort.  Meece said the 
city’s proposal will be to take the county’s refuse for one month and accept all county 
refuse at the city transfer station after trucks are weighed on county scales.  He said 
private resident refuse will be accepted at the city transfer station as it is currently.  
Wright said not using the railroad for a month may confound the county’s contract with 
EnviroCon and the county can suffer retaliation as a result.  Taylor said he will contact 
EnviroCon to discuss possible changes in the contract.  Meece said the county should not 
let the railroad make the decision of whether to attempt the trial effort.  Wright said he 
thinks the city system would be able to absorb county citizen refuse in the future that 
typically would go directly to the landfill, if need be.  
 
Taylor said he will run Meece’s proposal by county legal counsel to discuss the 
Envirocon contract.  Commissioner Durgan said he thinks the county should run the 
proposal by its legal counsel and plan on conducting a month trial.  He said prior to that 
the Commission should meet again and make clear to the public what will be done on a 
test basis.  He said that may help define the types of refuse that may be received.  He said 
the county needs to conduct a test.   
 
There was discussion about setting weekly refuse brainstorming meetings to touch base 
on refuse master plan development and system operations and provide more opportunities 
for public participation.  The board set a meeting for 1:30 p.m. on September 30.   
 
Carter asked if there was any way to send Currie to Camas, Washington, to talk with Bell 
and Associates before the county receives Bell’s solid waste update report.  The 
Commission said it would have to check with legal counsel for possible conflicts of 
interest with such an effort. 
 
@10:15:51 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 9/19/11 Page 15 of 16 



Week of 9/19/11 Page 16 of 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Randy Taylor, R.S. 
Chairman, Park County Commission  
Park County, Montana 
 
 
Denise Nelson 
Clerk & Recorder 
Park County, Montana 


